
Agenda Agenda 
CITY COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 

Mayor/Commissioner – Ed Wolf – Seat 1 
Mayor Pro-Tem/Commissioner – Ronald Allen – Seat 5

Pamala Harrison-Bivins – Seat 2
Don C. Clark – Seat 4 

Robby Strickland – Seat 3
Joseph Jacobs – Interim City Manager

January 9, 2012 
7:00 PM 

PLEASE TURN OFF ALL CELL PHONES AND PAGERS 
Persons with disabilities needing assistance to participate in any of these proceedings should contact the City Clerk’s Department, ADA Coordinator, at 352-330-1330, Ext. 102, forty-
eight (48) hours in advance of the meeting. 

F.S.S. 286.0105A-If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the Commission with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, they will need a record of the 
proceedings, and that for such purpose they may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the 
appeal is to be based.  (The City of Wildwood DOES NOT provide this verbatim record). 

AGENDA 

� THE MEETING IS CALLED TO ORDER BY THE MAYOR 
� INVOCATION 
� FLAG SALUTE 

1. TIMED ITEMS AND PUBLIC HEARINGS 

7:00 PM 
(a) 

PUBLIC HEARING – 2nd 
FINAL READING 

Ordinance No. O2011-20, an ordinance amending a zoning map 
amendment from Agricultural-10 (AG-10) to “Planned Development” (PD) 
zoning for Landstone (Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 

* Quasi Judicial Hearing 

2. REPORTS AND PUBLIC INPUT 

� SPECIAL PRESENTATION: None at this time 

a. City Manager 
b. City Attorney 
c. City Clerk 
d. Commission Members 
e. Public Forum (10 minute time limit) 
f. Notes, Reports, and items for the file as attached 

3. NEW BUSINESS – ACTION REQUIRED 

a. MINUTES

1. Minutes of Regular Meeting held on December 12, 2011 (Attachments – Staff recommends approval) 



COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA 
January 9, 2012 - Page 2 

b. ORDINANCES FIRST READING ONLY (READ ONLY – NO VOTE) 

1. Ordinance No. O2012-02; An ordinance requiring any and all animals brought on City property to be on a 
leash (Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 

2. Ordinance No. O2012-03; An ordinance providing for control of remote control planes within city limits 
(Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 

3. Ordinance No. O2012-04; An ordinance amending Ordinance numbers 212, 303 and O2010-06 and section 
19-30, City Of Wildwood Code; providing for application of base utility rates; providing for application of 
metered rates based upon consumption (Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 

c. RESOLUTIONS FOR APPROVAL: 

1. Resolution No. R2012-01; A resolution opposing proposed legislation that modifies, restricts or eliminates 
the authority of municipalities to levy, collect and/or expend the communication services tax and the local 
business tax (Commissioner Allen to address) (Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 

2. Resolution No. R2012-02; A resolution extending Resolution No. R2011-05, placing a moratorium of 
permitting internet cafes or entities providing game promotions for a period of six months (Attachments – 
Staff Recommends Approval) 

d. APPOINTMENTS

1. None 

e. CONTRACTS AND AGREEMENTS 

1. None 

f. FINANCIAL 

1. Bills for Approval (Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 
2. Request by Chief Reeser to deposit confiscated cash in the amount of $1,568.71 received as evidence and 

forfeiture of property into the Law Enforcement Trust Fund (Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 

g. GENERAL ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 

1. Schedule a workshop meeting to discuss potential changes to the Comprehensive Plan, Land Development 
Regulations and Design Standards; proposed dates are January 17th or 18th (Attachments – Board Option) 

2. Schedule Special Called Meeting to select top five applicants to interview for City Manager position 
(Attachments – Board Option) 

3. Request by Gidget Gibson to re-establish the Wildwood Area Historical Association to operate as in the past 
in addition to space for storage of items collected for historical documentation (Attachment – Board Option) 

4. Discussion/Approval of request by Cecelia Bonifay with Akerman Senterfitt to extend Landstone-Wright, LLC 
DRI for a period of four years and ten month per Section 494 of Chapter 2011-142 and Section Chapter 
2011-139, Laws of Florida (Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 

5. Discussion/Approval of request by Dean Barberee with Reader & Partners, LLC to extend Wildwood Springs 
DRI for a period of four years and ten month per Section 494 of Chapter 2011-142 and Section Chapter 
2011-139, Laws of Florida (Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 

6. Discussion/Approval from Dean Barberee with Reader & Partners, LLC to extend Wildwood Springs PD for a 
period of four years and ten month per Section 380.06(19)(c) 2 and Section 252.363, Florida Statutes (2011) 
(Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 

7. Discussion/Direction of request by Lenard Powell to trade/purchase City-owned property, a portion of parcel 
ID G08=018 which is contiguous to property he owns, generally located to the north of the intersection of 
Powell Rd. and CR 44A (Attachments – Board Direction) 

4. ADJOURN: 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 



COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA 
January 9, 2012 - Page 3 

NOTES – NO ACTION REQUIRED: 

a. None 

REPORTS: 
CITY MANAGER (2.a.f.):

1. FYI – Fourth Quarter 2011 Public Works Department Report from Gene Kornegay, PWD (Attachments) 
2. FYI – New traffic signal at SR44/Powell Rd/Signature Drive Intersection operational as of Jan. 3, 2012 (Attachment) 
3. FYI  - Police Department’s new Police Chaplain Program (Attachments) 
4. FYI – Water Department FDEP Sanitary Survey Report (Attachments - Informational Only) 



TIMED ITEMS AND PUBLIC HEARINGS

7:00 PUBLIC HEARING – Ordinance No. O2011-20, an ordinance amending a 
PM 2nd FINAL zoning map amendment from Agricultural-10 (AG-10) 
(a) READING to “Planned Development” (PD) zoning for Landstone 

(Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 



ORDINANCE NO. O2011-20

Timed Items & Public Hearings 
1. (a) - Page 1/46

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD GRANTING A REQUEST 
FOR A PLANNED DEVELOPMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 8.6 OF THE 
LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS; FOR CERTAIN PROPERTY WITHIN 
THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA; OWNED BY LANDSTONE-WRIGHT, 
LLC; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commission of the City of Wildwood, Florida, as 
follows:

The application filed by Landstone-Wright, LLC (hereinafter referred as the 
“Developer”) for a Mixed Use Planned Development was heard by and before the 
City Commission, Wildwood, Florida on this_______ day of ______________, 
2011. Based upon the verified Application and supporting documents, analyses, 
maps, charts, other evidence and instruments, the advice, report and 
recommendations of the Project Review Committee and the testimony adduced 
and evidence received at the Public Hearing by the Planning and Zoning Board 
on December 6, 2011 and otherwise being fully advised, the City Commission 
does hereby find and determine as follows: 

SECTION 1: GENERAL FINDINGS 

A. That the Landstone-Wright Planned Development Application (hereinafter 
referred to as “the Project”) was duly and properly filed herein on August 
31, 2011. 

B. That all fees required to be borne and paid by the Developer have been 
paid in accordance with the City of Wildwood Fee Schedule. 

C. That the Project was reviewed by the Project Review Committee and 
found to meet or exceed the minimum standards of the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan, Land Development Regulations, Code of 
Ordinances and all other applicable ordinances and regulations. 

D. That the Developer intends to develop the Project consisting of 4,131.8 
acres more or less, which is situated in Wildwood, Florida.  This land is 
legally described, a true copy of which is attached hereto as “Exhibit A”.

E. That the City approved the Landstone Communities Amended and 
Restated Development Order (ARDO) on December 13, 2010.  

F. That the Developer has complied with the conceptual plan provision as 
required by Section 8.4 of the Land Development Regulations. 

Page 1 of 27
Ordinance No.O2011-20

Landstone Communities Planned Development Agreement



Timed Items & Public Hearings 
1. (a) - Page 2/46

G. That the City has complied with the due notice requirements of Section 
3.3(B) 3 of the Land Development Regulations. 

SECTION 2: FINDINGS REGARDING PLANNED DEVELOPMENT OVERLAY 

A. That the Developer has applied for a Mixed Use Planned Development 
(MUPD) of the lands described in “Exhibit A”. 

B. That the Project is consistent with both the City of Wildwood 
Comprehensive Plan, the intent and purpose of the City of Wildwood Land 
Development Regulations, the Landstone Communities Amended and 
Restated Development Order, and does promote the public health, safety, 
morals, welfare, and orderly growth of the City of Wildwood. 

C. That the City of Wildwood Land Development Regulations are consistent 
with the provisions of the “Planned Development Agreement” as 
hereinafter set forth in this Ordinance and with respect to any conflict 
between the Land Development Regulations in effect at the time of 
adoption of the “Planned Development Agreement”, the provisions of the 
“Planned Development Agreement” shall govern. The “Planned 
Development Agreement” is vested for the timeframe necessary for the 
development of the property which is the subject of the Planned 
Development Agreement. The City of Wildwood will ensure the 
compliance with this Ordinance. 

D. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its approval and 
adoption by the City Commission. 

E. That nothing in this Ordinance shall be construed as waiving or limiting the 
Developer's right to develop the Property in accordance with the version of 
the Land Development Regulations which became effective on July 25, 
2011. It is also acknowledged that Developer has the right, but not the 
obligation, to proceed under all or portions of the version of the Land 
Development Regulations that were adopted by the City on July 25, 2011, 
as amended. 

SECTION 3: PLANNED DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT:  GENERAL 
PROVISIONS

A. General Conditions. The following general conditions shall apply to the 
Project:

1) Any portion of the property which has not yet been developed 
and/or platted may continue to be utilized for agriculture and 
silvicultural activity as presently existing on the property.

Page 2 of 27
Ordinance No.O2011-20

Landstone Communities Planned Development Agreement



Timed Items & Public Hearings 
1. (a) - Page 3/46

2) Individual developers within the Project will not be required to 
contain multiple housing types within individual development pods. 
The overall Landstone project meets the requirement for a “mix of 
housing types.” 

3) The definitions within the City of Wildwood Land Development 
Regulations (LDRs) shall apply to the Landstone Planned 
Development (PD) unless otherwise defined within the PD.  The 
following definitions shall prevail in the event of a discrepancy 
between the LDRs and the Landstone PD: 

a) Open Space. Open space is defined as any portion of the 
Project which is open to the sky and contains no impervious 
surfaces, except that pervious surfaces within the residential 
lots or commercial parcels do not qualify as open space. 

b) Single family attached. A dwelling unit whose primary 
structure or garage is connected to an adjacent dwelling unit 
or garage by any architectural feature integral to their 
design, excluding fences, posts, utility screen walls, stoops, 
driveways, walkways and air conditioning pads. 

c) Tracts, Pods and Parcels. The terms “tract(s)”, “parcel(s)” 
and “pod(s)” as used herein are interchangeable and refer to 
the land use areas shown on the conceptual development 
plan.

d) Project. Landstone-Wright Planned Development 
Application. The project is the entire 4,131 acres more or 
less as a whole. 

B. Development Concept.  The Project shall be developed as a Planned 
Development substantially in accordance with this Ordinance and the 
Amended and Restated Development Order, as the same may be 
amended from time to time in accordance with the law.  This Planned 
Development Agreement shall govern the development of the Project. The 
Project shall adhere to the Design Standards contained within Section 4 of 
this Ordinance. 

C. Conceptual Development Plan. The Project includes a conceptual 
development plan pursuant to Section 8.4 of the Land Development 
Regulations. The conceptual development plan prepared by EDSA, dated 
August 2, 2011 is incorporated into this Ordinance as “Exhibit B”. The 
conceptual development plan is substantially consistent with the 
Landstone Communities Amended and Restated Development Order and 
Policy 1.7.2 of the Future Land Use Element of the City of Wildwood 
Comprehensive Plan. 

1) The conceptual development plan illustrates the general location of 
the following land uses which may be described in more detail in 
Section 4 of this Ordinance: 

a) Industrial and/ or Mining; 
Page 3 of 27

Ordinance No.O2011-20
Landstone Communities Planned Development Agreement



Timed Items & Public Hearings 
1. (a) - Page 4/46

b) Neighborhood Mixed Use Center (NMUC);
c) Neighborhood Commercial Center;
d) Community Villages;
e) Residential Villages;
f) Public facilities;
g) Parks;
h) Golf;
i) Preservation areas;
j) Nature center;
k) Canal; and
l) Stormwater

2) The conceptual development plan is conceptual in nature and may 
be affected or modified by final zoning approval and conditions, by 
compensating storage capacity in flood prone areas, final wetland 
or protected species locations and jurisdictional boundaries, final 
engineering, permitting, surveys or conservation easements. 

D. Development Program. The Project shall be developed in accordance 
with the development programs contained within the conceptual 
development plan and the phasing table below. 

Land Use Phase 1 Phase 2 Totals
Residential 3,475 units 4,550 units 8,025 units 

Commercial/Retail 170,000 SF 482,500 SF 652,000 SF 
Office 60,000 SF 90,000 SF 150,000 SF 

Warehouse/Industrial 250,000 SF 250,000 SF 500,000 SF 
Hotel 250 rooms - 250 rooms 
Mine 280 acres - 280 acres 

Golf Course* 18 holes - 18 holes 
Parks 75 acres 6.1 acres 81.8 acres 

Elementary School - 650 students 650 students 
Notes: * The “golf course” land use may include 18 holes of golf course with clubhouse 
and associated uses and/or spa wellness facility. 

E. Development Phasing. The Project shall be phased as follows: 
1) The first Community Village will commence development in the 

northern section of the Project along CR 470 in close proximity to 
the Neighborhood Mixed Use Center (NMUC).   

2) Development phasing will progress from north to south.  The 
highest density and intensity of uses will be placed where 
infrastructure is already in place and near internal locations for the 
expansion of water and wastewater services. 

3) No Residential Village, located greater than one (1) mile from a 
previously developed Community Village, Residential Village or 
NMUC parcel, shall commence construction until 50% of the units 

Page 4 of 27
Ordinance No.O2011-20

Landstone Communities Planned Development Agreement



Timed Items & Public Hearings 
1. (a) - Page 5/46

in the previously developed village or parcel have received building 
permits.

4) The development of the Project shall be developed in accordance 
with the phasing schedule as shown on the PD Conceptual 
Development Plan. 

5) A transition zone/buffer area will be established along the southern 
boundary of The Landstone Communities DRI in order to create a 
clear transition from urban to rural land uses, and to establish an 
aesthetically pleasing visual and physical separation between The 
Landstone Communities DRI and the rural lands to the south. 
Residential and non-residential uses, including roadways, shall not 
be allowed in this area.  The transition zone will extend along the 
southern boundary and be defined as a 1,000' offset from a single, 
straight line drawn between the SE corner of SECTION 27-20-23 
and the SW corner of SECTION 28-20-23, except for the 
approximately 40 acre carve out (SE 1/4 of SE 1/4 of SECTION 28-
20-23) located in the south central portion of the property which 
shall have a 150' offset along its northern boundary. Allowable uses 
within the transition zone are preservation and conservation uses 
(including the necessary access and improvements to support 
management of these uses), golf course and passive recreation.

F. Zoning Overlay Map. The Planned Development shall be filed and 
retained for public inspection and shall constitute a supplement to the 
zoning overlay map pursuant to subsection 8.2(G) of the Land 
Development Regulations. 

G. Amendments. The Development Services Director, or designee, shall 
have the authority to approve non-substantial changes to the conceptual 
development plan without a public hearing.  The determination of what 
constitutes a non-substantial change shall be at the Development 
Services Director’s discretion. All modifications requiring an amendment 
to the Planned Development Agreement shall require review and 
recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Board and action by the City 
Commission in the same manner as an Application for Planned 
Development.

H. Future Approvals. After the Planned Development is recorded, and prior to 
any construction occurring, a site plan or subdivision preliminary plan shall 
be submitted for review and approval in the manner required by Chapter 4 
or Chapter 5 of the Land Development Regulations, whichever Chapter is 
applicable. Prior to approval of a site plan or a subdivision preliminary 
plan, the Project may: 

1) Recreation and Open Space Master Plan. In lieu of the City’s 
amenity and open space requirements contained within the Design 
District Standards, the Applicant may prepare and submit for 

Page 5 of 27
Ordinance No.O2011-20

Landstone Communities Planned Development Agreement



Timed Items & Public Hearings 
1. (a) - Page 6/46

approval, a recreation and open space master plan for the Project. 
The recreation and open space master plan should include the 
system of pedestrian greenways and multi-modal trails described 
herein and will describe in detail how adequate recreation and open 
space will be provided within development tracts and within the 
overall Project itself. The master plan will be substantially 
consistent with the conditions of the Amended and Restated 
Development Order and this Planned Development Agreement. 

2) Utility/Developer’s Agreement. The City of Wildwood will provide 
water, wastewater and, when available, reuse water services to the 
Project. This commitment is memorialized in the Annexation 
Agreement, Memorandum of Understanding and Amended and 
Restated Development Order between the Developer and the City. 
The City and the Developer agree to enter into Utility or 
Developer’s Agreements to address the provision of water, 
wastewater and reuse water to the Project.

SECTION 4: PLANNED DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT: PROJECT 
STANDARDS

A. General Principles and Standards. The following general and principles 
and standards shall apply: 

1) The Project shall be designed with compact development tracts 
interlaced with an extensive network of open space and 
interconnected with a comprehensively planned system of 
pedestrian greenways and multi-modal trails with the specific intent 
of reducing automobile dependence and greenhouse gas 
emissions while promoting energy efficiency and sustainable 
lifestyle habits. 

2) The Project shall incorporate the principles of smart growth and 
clustering to provide open space, preserve natural resources, and 
promote social interaction within a pedestrian friendly community. 

3) A wide diversity of housing types shall be incorporated into the 
Project to appeal to a wide variety of economic and age levels. 

4) The Community and Residential Villages, Neighborhood Mixed Use 
Center and Neighborhood Center within the Project shall be 
interconnected by a system of approximately 20 miles of trails, bike 
lanes and off-road multi-use paths.  This will provide multi-modal 
opportunities for the Project’s residents, provide recreational 
opportunities, and contribute to the overall health of the residents. 

5) In order to promote a balanced community, the plan for the Project 
shall provide sites for a variety of support uses which may include 
an elementary school and regional park, waste water treatment 
plant and wet weather storage area, and a Fire/EMS/City Services 
Office site. In addition, neighborhood parks shall be provided in 

Page 6 of 27
Ordinance No.O2011-20

Landstone Communities Planned Development Agreement



Timed Items & Public Hearings 
1. (a) - Page 7/46

each residential neighborhood to support the recreational needs of 
the neighborhood. 

B. Land Use Categories. The Project shall contain land use categories 
consistent with this Section and with the conceptual development plan.  

1) Neighborhood Mixed-Use Center (NMUC). At the time of full project 
buildout the NMUC: 

a) Shall not be smaller than two hundred fifty (250) gross acres; 
b) Shall contain no less than three hundred thousand (300,000) 

square feet of Commercial/Retail building space and no less 
than one hundred fifty thousand (150,000) square feet of 
Office building space; 

c) May contain up to two hundred fifty (250) hotel rooms; and 
d) Shall contain no less than two thousand (2,000) dwelling 

units
2) Performance Standards with the NMUC.

a) The minimum average residential net density in the NMUC 
shall be 10 units per residential acre. At least 50% of the 
residential uses in the NMUC shall be located within one-half 
mile walking distance of non-residential uses to promote an 
attractive and functional mix of land uses and to achieve 
energy efficient land use pattern. 

b) Minimum intensity for non-residential development shall be 
.25 FAR. 

c) The uses within the NMUC must adhere to the setbacks and 
development standards in Section 4.D of this Ordinance. 

d) The NMUC shall follow the Community Design District 
standards. Street cross-sections have been incorporated into 
this Ordinance as “Exhibit C.” 

3) Community Village. Community Villages shall adhere to the 
following requirements: 

a) In order to create defined, walkable neighborhoods, 
residential tracts or pods shall be organized into individual 
Community Villages of 500-1,500 dwelling units each. 

b) To ensure a balance of housing options, densities within the 
Community Villages shall only be achievable by containing a 
variety of housing types and lot sizes. 

c) Each Community Village shall be organized around a 
distinguishable village center with recreational open space 
suitable for passive and active recreation. 

d) Mixed-Use and Commercial buildings shall not be permitted 
within community villages.  A spa/wellness facility is a 
permitted use. 

4) Performance Standards within Community Villages. 
a) The minimum average net density of all Community Villages 

shall not be less than six (6) dwelling units per residential 
Page 7 of 27

Ordinance No.O2011-20
Landstone Communities Planned Development Agreement



Timed Items & Public Hearings 
1. (a) - Page 8/46

acre and not more than twenty-five (25) dwelling units per 
residential acre at the time of full project build-out.

b) At the time of full project build-out, at least seventy five 
percent (75%) of the residential units in a Community Village 
shall be located within a one (1) mile walking distance of the 
edge of the NMUC. 

c) The uses within the Community Village must adhere to the 
setbacks and development standards in Section 4.D of this 
Ordinance.

5) Residential Village. Residential villages shall adhere to the 
following requirements: 

a) In order to create defined, walkable neighborhoods, 
residential pods shall be organized into individual Residential 
Villages of 250-1,000 dwelling units each.

b) To ensure a balance of housing options, densities within the 
Residential Villages shall only be achievable by containing a 
variety of housing types and lot sizes. 

c) Each Residential Village shall be organized around a 
distinguishable village center with recreational open space 
suitable for passive and active recreation. 

d) Mixed-use and commercial buildings shall not be permitted 
within residential villages. 

6) Performance Standards within Residential Villages. 
a) The minimum average net density of all Residential Villages 

shall not be less than three (3) dwelling units per residential 
acre and not more than twenty (20) dwelling units per 
residential acre at the time of full project build-out.

b) The uses within Residential Villages must adhere to the 
setbacks and development standards in Section 4.D of this 
Ordinance.

7) Neighborhood Commercial Center (NCC). At the time of full project 
build-out the NCC: 

a) Shall not be smaller than 10 gross acres; and  
b) Shall contain no less than 30,000 square feet of Commercial 

/Retail building space 
8) Performance Standards within the NCC. 

a) Residential units at a minimum average net density of 6 units 
per residential acre may also be located in the NCC to 
promote and attractive and functional mix of land uses and 
to achieve energy efficient land use pattern. 

b) The NCC shall be designed to provide pedestrian and 
bicycle access to surrounding villages to reduce automobile 
dependency. 

c) The uses within the NCC must adhere to the setbacks and 
development standards in Section 4.D of this Ordinance. 

9) Industrial Development Standards. 
Page 8 of 27

Ordinance No.O2011-20
Landstone Communities Planned Development Agreement



Timed Items & Public Hearings 
1. (a) - Page 9/46

a) Industrial uses shall be permitted consistent with the City of 
Wildwood M-1 zoning district and comply with the City’s 
Industrial Design District Standards. 

b) A maximum of 500,000 square feet of Industrial/ 
Warehousing development on 90 to 120 acres will be 
located east of the mining parcel with access to CR 470. 
The Industrial/ Warehousing development shall not be 
located in the Neighborhood Mixed Use Center.

c) The following uses are prohibited:   
i. Paper and pulp manufacturing 
ii. Outdoor storage yards and similar uses such as 

junkyards, scrap yards and salvage yards 
iii. Manufacturing or warehousing of chemicals, 

fertilizers, hazardous, or biohazardous materials 
d) A maximum of 280 acres located in the northwest portion of 

the Project, with access to CR 470, will be utilized for mining.  
10) Community / Institutional Center. Community and Institutional uses 

will be located in a central location within the Project adjacent to CR 
501 through the dedication to the City of a 75-acre site for a 
Regional Park and a 14-acre site for an elementary school.  The 
Community / Institutional Center shall be designed to provide 
pedestrian and bicycle access to surrounding villages to reduce 
automobile dependency. 

C. Golf Course. The Developer may elect not to build the golf course.  Golf is 
considered an alternative land use and at the option of the Developer can 
be eliminated and converted to residential, stormwater and/or an 
appropriate amount of open space.  No development permits shall be 
issued for the construction of any golf course, or portion thereof, unless 
and until the Developer demonstrates that such golf course, or portion 
thereof, proposed for development approval will comply with the following 
design, construction, maintenance and monitoring requirements: 

1) The golf course, including non-play areas of the golf course, will be 
designed, constructed and maintained to meet the minimum 
standards of the Audubon International’s Signature Gold Program’s 
Natural Resource management Plan’s Environmental and Design 
Standards, or another similar program’s environmental and design 
standards (the “AISP Gold Standards”), which utilize low impact 
development principles where reasonably feasible to minimize 
development impacts, but shall not be required to actually obtain 
such certification. 

2) Florida Friendly Design landscape principles, including xeriscape, 
shall be incorporated, as applicable, into the gold course design 
and construction. 

3) Non-play areas of the golf course shall be landscaped in 
accordance with the AISP requirements or its equivalent.  Play 

Page 9 of 27
Ordinance No.O2011-20

Landstone Communities Planned Development Agreement



Timed Items & Public Hearings 
1. (a) - Page 10/46

areas are to be considered the tee, fairway(s) and greens/putting 
area.

4) The developer shall maintain an up-to-date Integrated Pest 
Management Program (IPMP) covering the golf course.  Prior to the 
golf course construction, the IPMP shall be submitted to the Florida 
Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission (FFWCC) for review 
and approval and to the Florida Department of Environmental 
Protection (FDEP) and South West Florida Water Management 
District (SWFWMD) if required by their respective agency rules. 
Any revision(s) to the IPMP shall not be considered an action 
requiring the filing of a Notice of Proposed Change for an 
Amendment to the Development Order. 

5) The IPMP shall include a Chemicals Management Plan (CMP). 
6) Prior to golf course construction, soil testing shall be used to verify 

that suitable soil cover is maintained between greens surface and 
any subsurface limestone rock strata, limestone pinnacles or 
potential karst connections and to determine subsurface features. 

7) The golf course shall be maintained under the direction of a 
superintendent(s) who is licensed by the State to use restricted 
pesticides and who is familiar with and experienced in the principles 
of integrated pest management. The Developer, with the 
assistance of the superintendent(s) shall be responsible for 
ensuring the implementation of the IPMP; and 

8) The Developer shall report on the status of the golf course for 
compliance with the Audubon International Signature Program 
(AISP) or other similar program’s environmental and design 
standards in each Biennial Report as required of this Amended and 
Restated Development Order. 

D. Setbacks and Development Standards. Minimum lot details for residential 
units are incorporated into this Ordinance as “Exhibit D.”  The minimum lot 
details illustrate lot size and setbacks for each residential building type. 
The minimum lot details are provided for illustration purposes only. The 
written text shall prevail over the illustrations where interpretation is 
required.

1) Mixed-Use buildings and Commercial buildings within the NMUC 
shall adhere to the following setbacks and development standards: 

a) Minimum setback from CR 501: 15’ 
b) Minimum front setback: 15’ 
c) Minimum rear setback: 0’ 
d) Minimum side setback: from face of curb: 15’ 
e) Minimum side setback: between adjacent buildings: 0’ 
f) Minimum Floor Area Ratio (FAR): point two five (.25) 
g) Maximum lot coverage: one hundred percent (100%) 
h) Maximum building height: 100’ 

Page 10 of 27
Ordinance No.O2011-20

Landstone Communities Planned Development Agreement



Timed Items & Public Hearings 
1. (a) - Page 11/46

i) Balconies, covered entrances, arches, bay windows, and 
roof overhands may encroach into building setbacks. 

2) Residential buildings within the NMUC shall adhere to the following 
setbacks and development standards: 

a) Multi-family Attached Residential 
(i) Minimum setback from CR 501: 15’ 
(ii) Minimum front setback: 10’ 
(iii) Minimum rear yard setback: 

1. Rear-loaded criteria: 8’ from alley edge of 
pavement when parking outside of garage is 
not provided or 18’ measured from alley edge 
of pavement when parking outside of garage is 
provided

2. Front-loaded criteria:  5’ 
(iv) Minimum side setback: from face of curb: 5’ 
(v) Minimum side setback: between adjacent buildings: 0’ 
(vi) Maximum lot coverage: one hundred percent (100%) 
(vii) Maximum building height: 4 stories (45’) 
(viii) Balconies, covered entrances, arches, bay windows, 

and roof overhands may encroach into building 
setbacks 3’. 

3) Single Family Detached 
a) Minimum setback from CR 501: 15’ 
b) Minimum lot width: 30’ 
c) Minimum lot depth: 90’ 
d) Minimum lot size: 2,700 SF 
e) Minimum living area: 1,000 SF 
f) Minimum front setback: 10’ 
g) Minimum porch setback: 5’ 
h) Minimum side yard setback:  3’ (minimum 6’ between 

structures)
i) Minimum side street setback: 15’
j) Minimum rear yard setback:

(i) Rear-loaded criteria: 8’ from alley edge of pavement 
when parking outside of garage is not provided or 18’ 
measured from alley edge of pavement when parking 
outside of garage is provided 

(ii) Front-loaded criteria:  5’ 
k) Maximum height: 3 stories (35’) 
l) Maximum lot coverage: 85% 
m) Balconies, covered entrances, arches, bay windows, and 

roof overhangs may encroach into front building and corner 
lot side setback 3’.  Balconies and roof overhangs may 
encroach into rear setbacks. 

n) On-street parking may be used to meet parking 
requirements.

Page 11 of 27
Ordinance No.O2011-20

Landstone Communities Planned Development Agreement



4) Single Family Attached 

Timed Items & Public Hearings 
1. (a) - Page 12/46

a) Minimum setback from CR 501: 15’
b) Minimum lot width: 20’
c) Minimum lot depth: 90’
d) Minimum lot size: 1,800 SF
e) Minimum living area: 1,000 SF
f) Minimum front setback: 10’
g) Minimum porch setback: 5’
h) Minimum side yard setback:  0’ or 3’ (minimum 6’ between

structures)
i) Detached garages are permitted to have 0’ side yard 

setbacks. Detached garages are permitted to be attached to 
the garage on the adjoining lot. 

j) Minimum side street setback: 15’
k) Minimum rear yard setback:

(i) Rear-loaded criteria: 8’ from alley edge of pavement 
when parking outside of garage is not provided or 18’ 
measured from alley edge of pavement when parking 
outside of garage is provided 

(ii) Front-loaded criteria:  5’ 
l) Maximum height: 3 stories (35’) 
m) Maximum lot coverage:  85% 
n) Balconies, covered entrances, arches, bay windows, and 

roof overhangs may encroach into front building and corner 
lot side setback 3’.  Balconies and roof overhangs may 
encroach into rear setbacks 

o) On-street parking may be used to meet parking 
requirements.

5) Single Family Attached – Townhouses 
a) Minimum setback from CR 501: 15’ 
b) Minimum lot width: 15’ 
c) Minimum lot depth: 50’ 
d) Minimum lot size: 750 SF 
e) Minimum living area: 1,000 SF 
f) Minimum front setback: 10’ 
g) Minimum porch setback: 5’ 
h) Minimum side yard setback:  0’ or 5’ for end unit 
i) Minimum side street setback: 15’ 
j) Minimum rear yard setback: 

(i) Rear-loaded criteria: 8’ from alley edge of pavement 
when parking outside of garage is not provided or 18’ 
measured from alley edge of pavement when parking 
outside of garage is provided 

(ii) Front-loaded criteria:  5’
k) Maximum height: 3 stories (35’)
l) Maximum lot coverage: 90%

Page 12 of 27
Ordinance No.O2011-20

Landstone Communities Planned Development Agreement



Timed Items & Public Hearings 
1. (a) - Page 13/46

m) Balconies, covered entrances, arches, bay windows, and 
roof overhangs may encroach into front building and corner 
lot side setback 3’.  Balconies and roof overhangs may 
encroach into rear setbacks 

n) On-street parking may be used to meet parking 
requirements.

E. Local Street Network. The local street network shall be developed in 
accordance with the standards listed below. Street-cross sections have 
been incorporated into this Ordnance as “Exhibit D.” 

1) The overall major street network is shown on the conceptual 
development plan. This plan shows the major vehicular collector 
roadways and the extension of CR 501.  The roadway alignments, 
configuration of development areas and points of major access as 
depicted on the conceptual development plan are conceptual and 
may be revised during the site plan or construction plan review 
process. Such changes shall be considered non-substantial.  The 
primary principles the local street network must adhere to are as 
follows:

a) Connectivity. Provide an interconnected network of streets 
that allows easy internal access between development 
parcels within the project. Streets shall be connected and 
cul-de-sacs shall be limited to specific site or environmental 
conditions that prevent such connections. 

b) Pedestrian friendly. Ensure safe, pleasant walkable streets 
that encourage walking within the Project.  Traffic calming 
techniques are encouraged to promote safety and facilitate 
easy pedestrian movement. 

c) Multimodal trail compatibility. Allows for interface with a 
multimodal network of trails throughout the Project that 
fosters a safe environment for walking and bicycling as 
alternative means of traveling throughout the project. 

2) While a grid street pattern is desirable for certain development 
tracts such as a Neighborhood Mixed-Use Center, it is not 
mandatory outside of the Neighborhood Mixed-Use Center, so long 
as the primary principles outlined above for the local street network 
are respected. Curvilinear streets and cul-de-sacs are appropriate 
in areas limited by specific site or environmental conditions that 
prevent connections. 

3) Parallel or angle on-street parking shall be permitted on any street 
within the Project. 

4) Guard house structures and/or control gates may be located within 
the rights-of-way of private entry roads into development areas. 
The main access for any parcel fronting on CR 470 shall not be 
gated. Gated communities shall be permitted in pods which front 

Page 13 of 27
Ordinance No.O2011-20

Landstone Communities Planned Development Agreement



Timed Items & Public Hearings 
1. (a) - Page 14/46

CR 501 (extension) so long as the main access directly on CR 501 
(extension) is not gated. 

F. Greenways, Multimodal and Pedestrian Systems. Greenways, multimodal 
and pedestrian systems shall contain the following standards: 

1) Villages will be connected to the Neighborhood Mixed Use Center, 
the Neighborhood Commercial Center, the Community/Institutional 
Center, and with other Villages not only by roadway access, but 
also through a series of greenways and multimodal trails. 
Greenways will also connect the Villages with recreational and civic 
uses located throughout The Landstone PD thereby ensuring 
critical connectivity between and among the residential and non-
residential uses. 

2) Sidewalks are required along local roads within development 
parcels. Sidewalks shall be five feet (5’) in width, made of concrete, 
and shall be located on both sides of local roads. 

3) Greenways shall be included throughout the Project as a 
comprehensive pedestrian network with the specific intent of 
reducing automobile dependence and greenhouse gas emissions 
while promoting energy efficiency and sustainable lifestyles.

4) Greenways shall be characterized as continuous linear parks that 
connect Community and Residential Village Centers and amenities 
within the Neighborhood Mixed Use Center to surrounding 
greenways, multi-modal trails, nature trails and other components 
of the project’s overall pedestrian system. 

5) Greenways shall not be less than 10’ in width, and paved pathways 
shall not be less than five feet (5’) in width.  Pathways in Habitat 
Protection Tracts, as shown on the Conceptual Development Plan, 
shall be constructed with pervious materials only. 

6) Where greenway paths cross residential streets, street crossing 
signs shall be provided in addition to a raised pedestrian crossing 
paved with concrete unit pavers in another decorative pavement 
material that contrasts the street pavement material.

7) Existing trees shall be preserved within greenways in accordance 
with Section 6.10 of the Land Development Regulations.  The 
removal of trees classified by the city as “specimen” or “historic” 
shall not be permitted within greenways unless the Development 
Services Director agrees that site conditions or other circumstances 
make such impacts unavoidable. 

8) Greenways shall be used by the project as a way to protect 
significant stands of existing trees and preserve the site’s unique 
character. Where greenways are located in areas devoid of 
existing trees, one large tree (4”dbh) and two medium trees (2” 
dbh) shall be provided for every 100 linear feet of greenway path. 
Tree species shall be in accordance with landscape criteria further 
defined within this document.  

Page 14 of 27
Ordinance No.O2011-20

Landstone Communities Planned Development Agreement



Timed Items & Public Hearings 
1. (a) - Page 15/46

9) Greenways may be used for distributed storm water storage, 
bioswales and vegetated overland storm water conveyance swales 
as part of a Low Impact Development approach to storm water 
management in accordance with regulations set forth by Southwest 
Florida Water Management District. 

10) Where feasible, development parcels shall provide at least one 
internal connection to greenways when that development parcel is 
immediately adjacent to a greenway.

G. Parks and Open Space. The Project shall maintain a minimum of 35% 
open space. The Project shall adhere to the following: 

1) Any and all common areas are to be owned and maintained by a 
property owners association and/or Community Development 
District(s) (CDD). 

2) In lieu of the City’s amenity and open space requirements 
contained within the Design District Standards within individual 
development parcels, the Applicant may prepare and submit for 
approval a recreation and open space master plan for the Project.

3) All park areas and buffers may include stormwater facilities if 
integrated into the overall design of parks/buffers as a landscape 
feature.

4) A minimum of 10% of the site’s upland area shall be maintained as 
voluntary upland conservation areas.  These conservation areas 
shall be preserved with the specific intent of maintaining site 
biodiversity and wildlife corridors, preserving habitat for native and 
listed wildlife species, and providing educational and recreational 
opportunities for the Project’s residents, guests, and visitors to the 
Project’s regional amenities.  This voluntary upland conservation 
area counts toward meeting the 35% open space requirement.

5) An approximately 75-acre site shall be dedicated to the City for a 
Regional Park in lieu of payment of Parks and Recreation impact 
fees, which donation satisfies this requirement for the Project.  The 
Regional Park site shall be dedicated to the City upon approval of 
the first final plat within the Project. 

6) Each Village, as described in Section 4.B, will contain a Village 
Center consisting of open space and/or active recreational facilities 
which shall serve as a focal point for that Village. 

7) Community Garden(s) 
a) The project shall include Community Garden(s) to provide 

residents with the opportunity to engage in the cultivation 
and production of horticultural and agricultural plants, 
including but not limited to fruits, vegetables, cutting flowers, 
herbs or other plant types that may be legally grown in the 
state of Florida and grown without a license. 

b) The total acreage of all areas within the Project designated 
as Community Garden(s) shall not be less than 5 acres. 

Page 15 of 27
Ordinance No.O2011-20

Landstone Communities Planned Development Agreement



Timed Items & Public Hearings 
1. (a) - Page 16/46

(i) A contiguous area not less than 3 acres co-located 
with the Nature Center shall be designated as a 
Community Garden 

(ii) Individual Community Gardens not associated with 
the Nature Center shall not be less than 1 acre in 
size.

c) The Community Garden(s) shall be operated under the 
direction of a volunteer-based non-profit organization that is 
comprised of community residents and governed by formal 
Bylaws. This organization shall be responsible for the 
following:

(i) Establishing and enforcing garden members’ usage 
guidelines and responsibilities; 

(ii) Providing gardening information and regular 
educational opportunities about community 
gardening;

(iii) Coordinating volunteer maintenance activities; 
(iv) Maintaining common gardening facilities, including but 

not limited to compost bins and community tool 
storage areas, if applicable; and 

(v) Generating revenue to offset garden operating costs 
d) Common areas in and around the Community Garden(s) 

shall be maintained by the Master Homeowner Association 
or Community Development District(s).

e) Community Garden Design Standards 
(i) Irrigation water shall be supplied to all Community 

Gardens from a rainwater storage pond with a potable 
water make-up as a supplemental source when 
storage ponds are not adequate. Multiple water taps 
shall be distributed throughout the garden for easy 
accessibility to all individual plots. Rainwater 
harvesting measures and the use of rain barrels shall 
be encouraged; 

(ii) Community Gardens shall be enclosed with a fence to 
discourage vandalism and theft.  The fence shall have 
lockable gate(s) so as to restrict garden access to 
garden members; 

(iii) Each Garden shall have weatherproof message 
board(s). Message board(s) shall be located at each 
garden entrance and display educational information, 
news and announcements, and garden rules, 
including garden hours; 

(iv) Each Garden shall have a designated composting 
area for the collection and composting of 
biodegradable garden refuse.  The composting area 

Page 16 of 27
Ordinance No.O2011-20

Landstone Communities Planned Development Agreement



Timed Items & Public Hearings 
1. (a) - Page 17/46

shall be defined by bins, fencing, walls or other 
vertical structures to contain the compost materials; 

(v) Garbage and recycling bins shall be provided at each 
Garden;

(vi) Shaded seating areas shall be provided at each 
Garden;

(vii) (vii) Garden entrances, composting, storage and 
demonstration areas, irrigation water taps and other 
common area features shall be marked with 
appropriate signage. Signage shall be constructed 
from weatherproof, durable materials and must 
demonstrate sustainable characteristics including but 
not limited to high recycled content, ability to be 
recycled, rapidly renewable materials and/or materials 
that have been extracted, harvested, and 
manufactured within 500 miles (as the crow flies) of 
the project site; and 

(viii)A demonstration organic fruit and vegetable garden 
plot shall be provided at each Community Garden and 
shall be maintained by the Community Garden 
Organization.

8) Environmental Educational Signage  
a) The project shall include a series of signs and interpretive 

graphic displays that educate the public about 
environmentally sustainable practices that were incorporated 
into the development plan. These signs and graphics may 
describe practices including but not limited to the following: 

(i) Signs that show where stormwater drains; 
(ii) Signs that indicate the environmental benefit of 

pedestrian transportation; 
(iii) Signs that indicate wildlife corridors and/or indicate 

the indigenous wildlife at the time of development; 
(iv) Signs that educate about the need/benefit of

conserving water; 
(v) Signs that educate about the need/benefit of

conserving energy; 
(vi) Signs that indicate the benefit of outdoor lighting that 

does not brighten the sky; 
(vii) Signs that educate about the types of native plants 

and any environmental benefits; 
(viii) Signs that educate about minimizing impact on 

preserved, created, or restored; 
(ix) Areas and how to enhance the environment; and 
(x) Signs that educate on how to create and maintain 

habitats for native species in their yards. 

Page 17 of 27
Ordinance No.O2011-20

Landstone Communities Planned Development Agreement



Timed Items & Public Hearings 
1. (a) - Page 18/46

b) No fewer than 10 different sustainable development 
practices shall be described through Environmental 
Educational Signage 

c) Environmental Educational Signage shall be designed and 
constructed with materials as appropriate per their location 
within the development to achieve a quality aesthetic that is 
consistent with nearby site furnishings or signage.

d) Environmental Educational Signage may be located 
throughout the development as determined appropriate in 
immediate proximity to those practices that are described or 
explained there on.  Potential locations include but are not 
limited to within parcel streetscapes; along multiuse, 
greenway and nature trails; at the project Nature Center; 
within the regional park; village centers and other common 
amenity spaces; and at habitat preservation areas. 

e) Environmental Educational Signage shall be constructed 
from weatherproof, durable materials and must demonstrate 
sustainable characteristics including but not limited to high 
recycled content, ability to be recycled, rapidly renewable 
materials and/or materials that have been extracted, 
harvested, and manufactured within 500 miles (as the crow 
flies) of the project site.  

9) Nature Center   
a) The project shall include a Nature Center that shall serve as 

a sustainable lifestyle education and demonstration center. 
The Center shall also serve as an administrative center for 
Project-wide sustainability initiatives, including habitat and 
resource monitoring and reporting activities. 

b) The Nature Center shall be co-located near the Eagle 
Preserve and Gopher Tortoise habitat as shown on the 
Conceptual Development Plan.   

c) The Nature Center shall not be less than 5 upland acres in 
size. Acreage of the co-located Community Garden shall not 
contribute to the Nature Center’s size for purposes of 
meeting this minimum acreage. 

d) The Nature Center shall be maintained by a property owners 
association and/or Community Development District(s) 
(CDD). Buffers and other landscape areas shall be planted 
in accordance with the Landscape and Buffer section of this 
ordinance.

e) The Nature Center may be operated in partnership with 
various jurisdictional agencies and local research institutions 
including but not limited to the City of Wildwood Parks and 
Recreation Department, Southwest Florida Water 
Management District (SWFWMD), or the University of 
Florida’s Program for Resource Efficient Communities.

Page 18 of 27
Ordinance No.O2011-20

Landstone Communities Planned Development Agreement



Timed Items & Public Hearings 
1. (a) - Page 19/46

f) The Nature Center shall include at a minimum: 
(i) Paved vehicular access, paved parking spaces and 

unpaved/stabilized overflow parking spaces; 
(ii) Pedestrian access to/from adjacent development 

parcels by way of greenway or nature trail(s); 
(iii) An outdoor classroom for demonstrations and 

environmental educational programs with 
permanent seating; 

(iv) Permanent shelters; 
(v) Picnic areas; 
(vi) Waste and Recycling bins; 
(vii) Environmental Education Signage; 
(viii) Entry and way-finding signage; 
(ix) Multi-Purpose lawn area(s) suitable for educational 

activities, community gatherings, events and 
markets;

(x) Permanent restroom facilities with drinking 
fountain(s), low/no flow fixtures and passive lighting; 

(xi) Trailhead for a universally accessible loop trail 
providing access to adjacent wildlife habitat 
preservation areas with trails and environmental 
education signage; 

(xii) Native plant community, habitat, and wildlife 
signage;

(xiii) Shaded bench seating; 
(xiv) Trailheads for Project Greenway or Nature Trail(s); 

and
(xv) Weatherproof message board with Nature Center 

facility map, pedestrian and multi-modal trail map, 
project open-space map indicating habitat 
preservation areas and other locations of special 
environmental interest, Nature Center news and 
announcements, and monitoring and reporting data. 

(xvi) Signed demonstration areas of sustainable 
development practices and materials including: 
1. Permeable pavement; 
2. Native plant materials; 
3. Drip irrigation where appropriate; 
4. Vegetated bioswale(s) / raingarden(s); and 
5. Rainwater harvesting. 

(xvii) The Nature Center may but shall not be required to 
include the following: 
1. Landscape waste compost and mulching area; 

and
2. Permanent Visitor’s Center with administrative 

offices.
Page 19 of 27

Ordinance No.O2011-20
Landstone Communities Planned Development Agreement



Timed Items & Public Hearings 
1. (a) - Page 20/46

(xviii) If a Permanent Visitor’s Center with administrative
offices is constructed, it shall be designed to meet 
LEED for New Construction Silver standards.  LEED 
Certification of the building is encouraged but shall 
not be required. The building shall be a 
demonstration green building that showcases 
sustainable building design, construction and 
operation technologies. The building shall include: 
1. Passive day lighting techniques and energy 

efficient lighting; 
2. Energy Star rated windows and HVAC system 

as further defined in the City of Wildwood 
Design District Standards; 

3. Photovoltaic electricity production; 
4. Solar thermal water heating; 
5. Low/no flow toilets, urinals and faucets; 
6. Rainwater harvesting; 
7. High SRI roofing and/or green-roof system; 
8. Sustainable construction materials; and 
9. Site structures, furnishings and signage at the 

Nature Center shall be constructed from 
weatherproof, durable materials and must 
demonstrate sustainable characteristics 
including but not limited to high recycled 
content, ability to be recycled, rapidly 
renewable materials and/or materials that have 
been extracted, harvested, and manufactured 
within 500 miles (as the crow flies) of the 
project site. 

H. Transit. The City and the Developer acknowledge the benefits of 
advanced planning to accommodate transit within the Project once a 
system is developed. As such, the following shall apply: 

1) At least one covered transit stop and bus pull-out shall be located in 
the Neighborhood Mixed Use Center as shown on the Conceptual 
Development Plan and adjacent to CR 470. 

2) At least one covered transit stop and bus pull-out shall be located in 
the Neighborhood Commercial Center as shown on the Conceptual 
Development Plan. 

3) Up to three (3) covered transit stops will be located along CR 470 
including a Park-n-Ride facility.  

4) The Developer agrees to provide an area up to three (3) acres with 
frontage on or good access and proximity to CR 470 for a transit 
park and ride facility. Said site is to be made available concurrent 
with the final plat approval for the lands adjacent to the site.

Page 20 of 27
Ordinance No.O2011-20

Landstone Communities Planned Development Agreement



Timed Items & Public Hearings 
1. (a) - Page 21/46

5) At least one (1) covered transit stop and bus pull-out shall be 
located in the Community/Institutional Center. 

6) Residential units along CR 501, which extends through a portion of 
the site on a north to south alignment, shall be developed at an 
average minimum net density of six (6) dwelling units per 
residential acre one-quarter (1/4) mile from the centerline on either 
side of the road which will support transit ridership. 

I. Stormwater Management. Stormwater management facilities shall adhere 
to SWFWMD and City of Wildwood criteria for design, construction, 
operation, treatment standards and maintenance of such facilities in 
hydrologic and karst sensitive areas as determined by SWFWMD. Further, 
the Project shall adhere to the following:

1) All development shall utilize Low Impact Development (LID) 
methods to reduce the impact of nutrients on natural wetland 
systems where approved by the SWFWMD and supported by the 
Florida Department of Environmental Protection and local agency 
jurisdiction. These LID methods may include, but not be limited to, 
low impact stormwater design consisting of: 

a) Vegetated swales and buffers prior to discharge of treated 
stormwater;

b) Tree cluster rain gardens; 
c) Pervious pavement, 
d) Conserving natural areas and wetlands; 
e) Minimizing development impacts; 
f) Attempting to maintain site runoff rates;
g) The use of integrated management practices; 
h) The implementation of pollution prevention and proper 

maintenance;
i) Minimization of land clearing; 
j) Protecting existing vegetation and minimizing clearing of 

vegetation (on both the overall site as well as individual lots);
k) Disconnecting directly connected impervious areas; 
l) Minimizing impervious areas; 
m) Minimizing soil compaction and fill; 
n) Protection of sensitive areas by use of clustering of 

development and common open space; 
o) Requiring Florida Friendly landscaping and compliance with 

the Green Industry Best Management Practices (BMP) for all 
landscape workers at the site; 

p) Greenroofs;
q) Rainwater cistern systems;
r) Stormwater harvesting (reuse);
s) Use of floating wetland mats on all wet detention ponds; and
t) Public education.

Page 21 of 27
Ordinance No.O2011-20

Landstone Communities Planned Development Agreement



Timed Items & Public Hearings 
1. (a) - Page 22/46

2) The use of these and other LID methods shall be subject to review 
and approval by the SWFWMD and the City. 

J. General Project Signage. Signage design shall comply with City of 
Wildwood Commercial Design Standards.  In addition, the following 
standards shall apply: 

1) Community marketing signage, park signage, and educational 
signage shall be permitted. 

2) Signage shall be compatible with the architecture, materials and 
composition of the building. 

3) Signage shall not obstruct windows, cornices, decorative details, or 
the expression line of the façade. The expression line refers to a 
horizontal linear element extending across a façade to differentiate 
between the base, middle and top of buildings or to indicate a 
massing transition. 

4) Signage above the expression line shall be prohibited except: 
a) Wall-mounted hanging signs that are decorative and 

complement the building façade. 
b) Signs that identify a building and are incorporated into the 

cornice detail. 
5) For all multi-tenant buildings, excluding all multi-tenant lease/out 

buildings, one primary multi-tenant sign shall be permitted in each 
right of way frontage, as long as each right of way frontage is equal 
to or exceeds 400 linear feet in length.  If the right of way frontage 
is less than 400 linear feet, only one primary multi-tenant sign -shall 
be permitted. The maximum height of a primary multi-tenant sign 
shall not exceed eight feet in height. The maximum text “copy 
area” of any multi-tenant sign shall not exceed 100 square feet per 
sign face. 

6) For all multi-tenant buildings that have more than one right-of-way 
frontage, one secondary multi-tenant sign shall be permitted in lieu 
of a primary multi-tenant free standing sign, or where a road right-
of-way frontage is greater than 400 linear feet in length.  Only one 
sign for each right of way frontage is permitted.  The maximum 
height of a secondary multi-tenant sign shall not exceed eight feet 
in height. The maximum text “copy area” of any single sign shall 
not exceed 80 square feet per sign face. 

7) Multi-tenant buildings in outparcels shall be limited to signs on 
buildings and shall not be permitted to advertise on multi-tenant 
signs.

8) Individual parcel monument identification signs are limited to only 
identification of fee simple parcels as approved as part of a plat. 
Only one sign per parcel, located along the primary roadway 
frontage, shall be permitted.  If the parcel frontage is 300 linear feet 
or greater, the maximum height of the sign shall not exceed six feet 
in height. The maximum text “copy area” of any single sign shall 

Page 22 of 27
Ordinance No.O2011-20

Landstone Communities Planned Development Agreement



Timed Items & Public Hearings 
1. (a) - Page 23/46

not exceed 36 square feet per sign face.  The maximum copy area 
of any sign shall not exceed 20 square feet per face. 

9) Animal crossing signs shall be permitted. 

K. Lighting. Lighting design shall conform to City of Wildwood Design District 
Standards. In addition, the following standards will apply: 

1) Lighting design in parking lots and pedestrian areas should aim to 
reduce the adverse effects of light pollution. 

2) All light fixtures including security lighting shall be cutoff fixtures 
and should be incorporated as an integral design element that 
complements the design of the building and project through its 
design style, materials and color. 

3) Lighting on buildings shall not be designed to highlight project site 
elements within parking areas. 

4) Illumination levels at all property lines created by lighting shall not 
exceed one-half footcandle when the building or parking areas are 
located adjacent to residential areas, and shall not exceed one 
footcandle when abutting other non-residential properties.  House-
side shields and other cutoff reflectors shall be incorporated into the 
lighting design to meet the design standard. 

5) All lighting within parking and pedestrian areas shall be coordinated 
with the landscape tree plan to reduce canopy conflicts with 
proposed or existing trees. 

6) A lighting time control panel and photocell shall be provided on all 
new lighting systems to provide automatic system shut-off after 
ordinary business hours. Full system shut-off excludes security 
lighting elements. 

7) Parking area light poles may be placed outside of parking islands 
as long as the poles are located in an area that is protected or the 
pole foundation has been designed to accept minimal levels of 
vehicular impact. All exposed pole foundations shall be 
aesthetically designed to match the primary structure (i.e. stucco 
finished with matching paint color) and shall be a minimum three 
feet (3’) in height. 

8) To provide appropriate lighting within a pedestrian area(s), the 
maximum light pole height in all parking areas shall not exceed 20 
feet.

9) Pedestrian lighting plans may incorporate a combination of pole 
lights, bollard lighting and landscaping accent lighting. 

L. Energy Efficiency Standards. The Project shall maintain the following 
standards:

1) Eligible equipment and appliances installed in all mixed use, 
commercial and residential buildings shall, at a minimum, meet 
Energy Star standards. Eligible equipment includes, but is not 
limited to refrigerators, dishwashers, clothes washers and dryers, 
and ceiling fans. 

Page 23 of 27
Ordinance No.O2011-20

Landstone Communities Planned Development Agreement



Timed Items & Public Hearings 
1. (a) - Page 24/46

2) Residential heating and cooling equipment shall be Energy Star 
qualified as further defined in the City of Wildwood Residential 
Design District Standards. The use of computerized programmable 
thermostats shall be promoted. 

3) All residential electric lighting fixtures, both interior and exterior, 
must be fitted with energy efficient light bulbs, including but not 
limited to Compact Fluorescent Lights (CFL) or Light Emitting Diode 
(LED) bulbs. Incandescent bulbs shall not be allowed. 

4) Residential windows, including those in garage areas, must be 
Energy Star qualified as further defined in the City of Wildwood 
Residential Design District Standards. 

M. Water Conservation Standards. The provisions of the City of Wildwood 
Ordinance No. 612 shall apply to development within the Landstone PD 
per Section 1 therein. Other standards include: 

1) New homes shall, at a minimum, be designed to meet the water 
conservation measures contained in City of Wildwood Ordinance 
No. 612. 

2) Low flow or dual flush toilet fixtures that are more water efficient 
than standards set forth in the Energy Policy Act of 1992, will be 
standard in residential and non-residential construction. 

3) Water-saver shower heads shall be offered for residential 
construction, and used where applicable in non-residential 
construction.

4) Automatic shutoff faucets shall be used where applicable in 
nonresidential construction. 

5) Rain sensors shall be installed on all residential and non-residential 
irrigation systems. Non-potable water shall be used for all irrigation 
once sufficient volume is available. 

6) Low volume irrigation spray heads as well as drip systems shall be 
used where appropriate for both residential and non-residential 
landscaping.

7) Residents shall be encouraged to use water-conserving devices for 
additions they might make to their irrigation systems. 

8) Drought-tolerant landscaping shall be utilized. The Developer will 
ensure that all landscaping design and maintenance throughout the 
development on Developer maintained property conforms to the 
lawn and landscape practices of the Florida Yards and 
Neighborhoods Program, as implemented by the University of 
Florida Cooperative Extension Service. 

9) The use of high maintenance sodded or landscaped common areas 
shall be minimized. High maintenance in this condition means 
requiring regular irrigation beyond the plant establishment period.

10) The Developer shall ensure that irrigation systems operated for the 
Project’s common or controlled areas utilize and maintain 
computerized irrigation based on weather station information, 

Page 24 of 27
Ordinance No.O2011-20

Landstone Communities Planned Development Agreement



Timed Items & Public Hearings 
1. (a) - Page 25/46

moisture sensing systems (to determine existing soil moisture), 
evapotranspiration rates, or zone control to ensure water 
conservation.

11) The Developer shall provide for the installation of reuse 
infrastructure necessary to serve all irrigated areas within the 
Project at the time of the installation of utility infrastructure for the 
Project.

N. Technical Standards. The following technical standards shall apply to the 
Project:

1) Landscaped islands are permitted in cul-de-sacs. 
2) Right-of-way widths for all street types may be reduced by 10’ 

overall provided a 5’ utility easement is provided on either side of 
the right-of-way. 

3) Where fire hydrants or fire systems are to be installed the minimum 
size water main installed shall be eight inches (8”) in accordance 
with the Florida Administrative Code. 

4) Design calculations, prepared by a registered professional 
engineer, shall be submitted to the City review concurrent with the 
plans that demonstrate that the proposed potable water system is 
capable of providing the required fire hydrant flow (minimum 1,000 
gpm) plus peak customer demand flow at all parts of the system 
while maintaining a minimum residual pressure of 20 psi in all parts 
of the system. 

5) Dirt and recycled concrete driveways to mining operations are 
exempt from the paving requirement contained in Section 6.5.(A)(1) 
of the LDR’s. 

6) Dead end rights-of-way with a cul-de-sac at the terminal end shall 
not exceed 1,500 feet. 

7) Sod, or other material acceptable by FGBC or other green 
standards acceptable to the City, shall be provided on all unpaved 
areas in the rights-of-way. 

P. Temporary Uses. Modular buildings will be permitted as temporary uses 
throughout the PD for internal uses such as sales centers, construction 
trailers, maintenance operations, operating offices or administrative 
offices. Temporary uses may be administratively approved by the 
Development Services Director at the time of site plan or construction plan 
review. The Director may establish appropriate conditions such as the 
number of temporary uses per site and the length of time the temporary 
use may be permitted. 

Q. Cell Towers. Cell towers are a permitted use; however, the design 
standards in the LDRs must be met.  Cell towers shall not exceed a 
maximum height of 200 feet. 

Page 25 of 27
Ordinance No.O2011-20

Landstone Communities Planned Development Agreement



Timed Items & Public Hearings 
1. (a) - Page 26/46

R. Maintenance of Common Areas. Maintenance and repair of structures, 
lawn mowing, and landscaping maintenance of all common areas within 
the Project shall be owned and maintained by the property owners 
association and/or a Community Development District (CDD), at no cost or 
obligation to the City.  The developer/owner shall create Guidelines for the 
maintenance of common areas. 

S. Enforcement of Rules and Regulations. For the maintenance of the 
common areas referenced in Section L above, the applicable provisions in 
the Guidelines: (i) shall be made applicable to the commercial and the 
residential segments of the Project; and (ii) shall be submitted to the City 
of Wildwood for reference, prior to a certificate of occupancy being issued 
for completed improvements. 

T. Impact Fees. The Project shall be subject to all impact fees applicable at 
the time of permitting unless payment is not required pursuant to the 
language contained in this ordinance or any subsequent ordinance and/or 
agreement entered into by the City and the Developer. All impact fees are 
to be paid as required in each applicable ordinance. Proof of Sumter 
County impact fees paid shall be provided to the City of Wildwood. Any 
impact fees adopted by the City of Wildwood, Sumter County or the 
Sumter County School Board prior to issuance of building permits shall 
also be applicable to the Project. 

U. Expiration of Planned Development Agreement. Site Development must 
begin within the Planned Development within 60 months after the final 
adoption of the Planned Development Agreement.  Once the construction 
of any on-site infrastructure has commenced the Project shall be vested. If 
no site development has started on the approved Planned Development 
within the allotted time frame, the City, within 60 days, shall notify the 
Developer of the pending expiration of the Planned Development 
Agreement. The applicant may request an extension or the Planned 
Development shall lapse and be of no further effect. The City Commission 
may extend the Planned Development Agreement for periods of up to six 
(6) months provided the Applicant can show good cause why said 
development was delayed. 

Page 26 of 27
Ordinance No.O2011-20

Landstone Communities Planned Development Agreement



Timed Items & Public Hearings 
1. (a) - Page 27/46

PASSED AND ORDAINED in regular session of the City Commission of the City 
of Wildwood, Sumter County, Florida, this  day of , . 

       CITY  COMMISSION
       CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 

ATTEST:
Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk 
     ED WOLF, MAYOR 

First Reading: 
Second Reading: 

Approved as to Form: 

Jerri A. Blair, City Attorney 

Page 27 of 27
Ordinance No.O2011-20

Landstone Communities Planned Development Agreement



Timed Items & Public Hearings 
1. (a) - Page 28/46

Ordinance O2011-20

Exhibit A

Legal Description



LANDSTONE-WRIGHT, LLC

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Timed Items & Public Hearings 
1. (a) - Page 29/46

PARCEL A 

A PORTION OF SECTIONS 15, 16, 17 AND 28 TOWNSHIP 20 SOUTH, RANGE 23 
EAST, SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA. TOGETHER WITH ALL OF SECTIONS 21, 22 
AND 27 TOWNSHIP 20 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA. 
BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCE AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF AFORESAID SECTION 15-20-23; 
THENCE ALONG THE EAST LINE OF AFORESAID SECTION 15-20-23 SOUTH 
00°12'50" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 150.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; 
THENCE CONTINUE ALONG SAID EAST LINE SOUTH 00°12'50" WEST, A 
DISTANCE OF 5,283.27 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SECTION 15-20-
23; THENCE ALONG THE EAST LINE OF AFORESAID SECTION 22-20-23 SOUTH 
00°12'50" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 5,333.27 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER 
OF SECTION 22-20-23; THENCE ALONG THE EAST LINE OF AFORESAID SECTION 
27-20-23 SOUTH 00°26'10" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 5,333.71 FEET TO THE 
SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SECTION 27-20-23; THENCE ALONG THE SOUTH LINE 
OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 27-20-23 NORTH 89°46'18" WEST, A 
DISTANCE OF 2,674.55 FEET TO THE SOUTH 1/4 CORNER OF SECTION 27-20-23; 
THENCE ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 27-20-
23 NORTH 89°49'59" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 2,655.24 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST 
CORNER OF SECTION 27-20-23; THENCE ALONG THE WEST LINE OF THE 
SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 27-20-23 NORTH 00°10'27" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 
1,333.94 FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE 
SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 28-20-23; THENCE ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF 
THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 28-20-23 NORTH 
89°32'31" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 1,332.94 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER 
OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 28-20-23; 
THENCE ALONG THE WEST LINE OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 
1/4 OF SECTION 28-20-23 SOUTH 00°05'48" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 1,334.31 FEET 
TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 
OF SECTION 28-20-23; THENCE ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SECTION 28-20-23 
NORTH 89°33'27" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 1331.14 FEET TO THE SOUTH 1/4 
CORNER OF SECTION 28-20-23; THENCE CONTINUE ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE 
NORTH 89°33'27" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 2662.79 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST 
CORNER OF SECTION 28-20-23; THENCE ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SECTION 
28-20-23 NORTH 00°07'47" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 5,341.74 FEET TO THE 
NORTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 28-20-23; THENCE ALONG THE WEST LINE 
OF SECTION 21-20-23 NORTH 00°21'08" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 5,311.20 FEET TO 
THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 21-20-23; THENCE ALONG THE SOUTH 
LINE OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 17-20-23 NORTH 89°35'19" WEST, A 
DISTANCE OF 2,669.67 FEET TO THE SOUTH 1/4 CORNER OF SECTION 17-20-23; 
THENCE ALONG THE WEST LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 
1/4 OF SECTION 17-20-23 NORTH 00°04'24" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 1,330.45 FEET 



Timed Items & Public Hearings 
1. (a) - Page 30/46

TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 
1/4 OF SECTION 17-20-23; THENCE ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF THE 
SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 17-20-23 SOUTH 
89°37'22" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 1,334.58 FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER 
OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 17-20-23; 
THENCE ALONG THE WEST LINE OF THE EAST 1/4 OF SECTION 17-20-23 NORTH 
00°05'01" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 3,844.55 FEET; THENCE DEPARTING SAID 
WEST LINE SOUTH 89°41'26" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 1,333.26 FEET; THENCE 
SOUTH 89°47'47" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 2,695.81 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 
89°52'46" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 2,681.23 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 89°43'44" EAST, 
A DISTANCE OF 5,346.15 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

TOGETHER WITH 

PARCEL B 

THE EAST ½ OF THE NORTHEAST ¼ OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 20 SOUTH, 
RANGE 23 EAST, SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA. 

Altogether Containing 4,131.8 acres more or less. 



Timed Items & Public Hearings 
1. (a) - Page 31/46

Ordinance O2011-20

Exhibit B

Conceptual Development Plan



III. Conceptual Development Plan 

Timed Items & Public Hearings 
1. (a) - Page 32/46



Timed Items & Public Hearings 
1. (a) - Page 33/46

Ordinance O2011-20

Exhibit C

Typical Road Cross-Sections



Ti
m

ed
 It

em
s 

&
 P

ub
lic

 H
ea

rin
gs

 
1.

 (a
) -

 P
ag

e 
34

/4
6

10
-1

9-
11



Ti
m

ed
 It

em
s 

&
 P

ub
lic

 H
ea

rin
gs

 
1.

 (a
) -

 P
ag

e 
35

/4
6

10
-1

9-
11



Ti
m

ed
 It

em
s 

&
 P

ub
lic

 H
ea

rin
gs

 
1.

 (a
) -

 P
ag

e 
36

/4
6



Timed Items & Public Hearings 
1. (a) - Page 37/46

Ordinance O2011-20

Exhibit D

Typical Lots (Minimums)





















2. REPORTS AND PUBLIC INPUT 

� SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS: None 

(a) CITY MANAGER:

NOTES: (2.f.)

None 

REPORTS: (2.f.) 

(See “ f ” below) 

(b) CITY ATTORNEY: 
(1) 

(c) CITY CLERK: 
(1) 

(d) COMMISSION MEMBERS: 
(1) 

(e) PUBLIC FORUM: 
(1) 

(f) NOTES/REPORTS/FILED ITEMS: 

CITY MANAGER (2.a.f.): 

1. FYI – Fourth Quarter 2011 Public Works Department Report from Gene Kornegay, PWD (Attachments) 
2. FYI – New traffic signal at SR44/Powell Rd/Signature Drive Intersection operational as of Jan. 3, 2012 

(Attachment) 
3. FYI - Police Department’s new Police Chaplain Program (Attachments) 
4. FYI – Water Department FDEP Sanitary Survey Report (Attachments - Informational Only) 



2. REPORTS & PUBLIC INPUT
2. a. f. 1. - Page 1/3



2. REPORTS & PUBLIC INPUT
2. a. f. 1. - Page 2/3



2. REPORTS & PUBLIC INPUT
2. a. f. 1. - Page 3/3



REPORTS & PUBLIC INPUT
2. a. f. 2. - Page 1/1



REPORTS & PUBLIC INPUT
2. a. f. 3. - Page 1/1



REPORTS & PUBLIC INPUT
2. a. f. 4. - Page 1/2



REPORTS & PUBLIC INPUT
2. a. f. 4. - Page 2/2



3. NEW BUSINESS – ACTION REQUIRED 

a. MINUTES 

1. Minutes of Regular Meeting held on December 12, 2011 (Attachments – Staff recommends approval) 

b. ORDINANCES FIRST READING ONLY (READ ONLY – NO VOTE) 

1. Ordinance No. O2012-02; An ordinance requiring any and all animals brought on City property to be on a 
leash (Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 

2. Ordinance No. O2012-03; An ordinance providing for control of remote control planes within city limits 
(Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 

3. Ordinance No. O2012-04; An ordinance amending Ordinance numbers 212, 303 and O2010-06 and section 
19-30, City Of Wildwood Code; providing for application of base utility rates; providing for application of 
metered rates based upon consumption (Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 

c. RESOLUTIONS FOR APPROVAL: 

1. Resolution No. R2012-01; A resolution opposing proposed legislation that modifies, restricts or eliminates 
the authority of municipalities to levy, collect and/or expend the communication services tax and the local 
business tax (Commissioner Allen to address) (Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 

2. Resolution No. R2012-02; A resolution extending Resolution No. R2011-05, placing a moratorium of 
permitting internet cafes or entities providing game promotions for a period of six months 
(Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 

d. APPOINTMENTS 
1. None 

e. CONTRACTS AND AGREEMENTS 
1. None 

f. FINANCIAL 

1. Bills for Approval (Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 
2. Request by Chief Reeser to deposit confiscated cash in the amount of $1,568.71 received as evidence and 

forfeiture of property into the Law Enforcement Trust Fund (Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 

g. GENERAL ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 

1. Schedule a workshop meeting to discuss potential changes to the Comprehensive Plan, Land Development 
Regulations and Design Standards; proposed dates are January 17th or 18th (Attachments – Board Option) 

2. Schedule Special Called Meeting to select top five applicants to interview for City Manager position 
(Attachments – Board Option) 

3. Request by Gidget Gibson to re-establish the Wildwood Area Historical Association to operate as in the 
past in addition to space for storage of items collected for historical documentation (Attachment – Board 
Option) 

4. Discussion/Approval of request by Cecelia Bonifay with Akerman Senterfill to extend Landstone-Wright, 
LLC DRI for a period of four years and ten month per Section 494 of Chapter 2011-142 and Section 
Chapter 2011-139, Laws of Florida (Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 

5. Discussion/Approval of request by Dean Barberee with Reader & Partners, LLC to extend Wildwood 
Springs DRI for a period of four years and ten month per Section 494 of Chapter 2011-142 and Section 
Chapter 2011-139, Laws of Florida (Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 

6. Discussion/Approval from Dean Barberee with Reader & Partners, LLC to extend Wildwood Springs PD for 
a period of four years and ten month per Section 380.06(19)(c) 2 and Section 252.363, Florida Statutes 
(2011) (Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 

7. Discussion/Approval of request by Lenard Powell to trade/purchase City-owned property, a portion of parcel 
ID G08=018 which is contiguous to property he owns, generally located to the north of the intersection of 
Powell Rd. and CR 44A (Attachments – Board Option/Direction to Staff) 



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. a. 1. - Page 1/10



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. a. 1. - Page 2/10



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. a. 1. - Page 3/10



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. a. 1. - Page 4/10



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. a. 1. - Page 5/10



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. a. 1. - Page 6/10



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. a. 1. - Page 7/10



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. a. 1. - Page 8/10



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. a. 1. - Page 9/10



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. a. 1. - Page 10/10



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. b. 1. - Page 1/1

ORDINANCE NO. O2012-02 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA, 
PROVIDING THAT ANY AND ALL ANIMALS BROUGHT ON 
CITY PROPERTY MUST BE ON A LEASH; PROVIDING FOR 
CONFLICT; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commission of the City of Wildwood, Florida: 

SECTION 1. Any and all animals who are brought on to City property are required 
to be on a leash at all times.  Failure to maintain the animal on a leash may result in 
ejection from the property. 

SECTION 2.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith, be, and the 
same are hereby repealed. 

SECTION 3. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is held to 
be invalid or unconstitutional by a Court or competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall 
in no way effect the validity of the remaining portions of said ordinance. 

SECTION 4. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its 
final adoption by the City Commission. 

PASSED AND ORDAINED this ____ day of_______________, 2011, by the City 
Commission of the City of Wildwood, Florida. 

SEAL CITY COMMISSION 
CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 

ATTEST:______________________ ____________________________
 Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk Ed Wolf, Mayor 

First Reading: _________________ 

Second Reading: _________________ 

Approved as to form: 
_______________________________ 
Jerri A. Blair, City Attorney 

ord/reso#4 

C:\Documents and Settings\User\My Documents\AAA-LISA DO CS\COW -LAP\ord\2012\Ord.O2012-02..Leash.on.wpd 

-1-



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. b. 2. - Page 1/1

ORDINANCE NO. O2012-03 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA, 
PROVIDING FOR THE CONTROL OF THE USE OF REMOTE 
CONTROL PLANES WITHIN CITY LIMITS; PROVIDING FOR 
CONFLICT; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commission of the City of Wildwood, Florida: 

SECTION 1. No remote control planes may be used on City property except in 
areas designated as appropriate for use by the City.  Any such areas will be posted with 
signs indicating the use is allowed. 

SECTION 2.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith, be, and the 
same are hereby repealed. 

SECTION 3. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is held to 
be invalid or unconstitutional by a Court or competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall 
in no way effect the validity of the remaining portions of said ordinance. 

SECTION 4. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its 
final adoption by the City Commission. 

PASSED AND ORDAINED this ____ day of_______________, 2011, by the City 
Commission of the City of Wildwood, Florida. 

SEAL CITY COMMISSION 
CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 

ATTEST:______________________ ____________________________
 Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk Ed Wolf, Mayor 

First Reading: _________________ 

Second Reading: _________________ 

Approved as to form: 
_______________________________ 
Jerri A. Blair, City Attorney 

ord/reso#4 

C:\Documents and Settings\User\My Documents\AAA-LISA DO CS\COW -LAP\ord\2012\O2012-03.remote.planes 

-1-



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. b. 3. - Page 1/2

ORDINANCE NO. O2012-

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA, 
AMENDING ORDINANCE NUMBERS 212, 303 AND O2010-
06 AND SECTION 19-30, CITY OF WILDWOOD CODE; 
PROVIDING FOR APPLICATION OF BASE UTILITY RATES; 
PROVIDING FOR APPLICATION OF METERED RATES 
BASED UPON CONSUMPTION; PROVIDING FOR 
CONFLICT; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Sections 19-30 and 19-155, City of Wildwood Code, and 
Ordinance numbers 212, 303 and O2010-06, the City of Wildwood City Commission has the 
authority to collect user rates and fees for utilities; and, 

WHEREAS, the City of Wildwood staff has determined that there is a need to clarify 
when metered consumption rates becomeapplicable to customers for water and wastewater 
service. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF 
WILDWOOD THAT: 

SECTION 1.  Section 19-30, City of Wildwood Code, is amended as follows (cross-
throughs indicate deletions and underlines indicate additions): 

Section 19-30.  Rates. 

(a) User fees.  Charges to users of city water and/or sewer services for 
such service shall be in such amounts as are set pursuant to this 
article by schedule duly adopted by the city commission at any regular 
or special meeting of the commission after due notice thereof by the 
unusual agenda notice.  Such schedule may be adopted and amended 
by the city commission upon motion duly made, after notice as above, 
and shall be signed by the mayor and attested by the city clerk. 
Copies thereof shall be on file in the office of the city clerk, available for 
inspection by the public during usual business hours.  

(1) Base rates shall become applicable as follows: 

(1)a. Single Family Residential: Base rate is assessed 
for both water and wastewater once water meter 
is set. 

(2)b. Multi Family Developments: Base rate is 
assessed for water once meter is set and 
wastewater once lift station is cleared and 

1

04



_____________________________ 

3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. b. 3. - Page 2/2

permitted to operate.  (If tie in is made to existing 
cleared and permitted lift station, base rate is 
assessed once meter is set.) 

(3)c. Commercial Developments: Base rate is 
assessed for water once meter is set and 
wastewater once lift station is cleared and 
permitted to operate.  (If tie in is made to existing 
cleared and permitted lift station, base rate is 
assessed once meter is set.) 

(2) Charges for metered consumption shall be as follows: 

a. Water user fees based upon metered consumption shall be 
applicable from the time of connection to the water meter. 

b. Wastewater user fees shall be based upon water consumption 
from the time the certificate of occupancy is issued.  No 
wastewater user fees shall be charged before the certificate of 
occupancy is issued. 

SECTION 2.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase of this ordinance, 
or any particular application thereof shall be held invalid by any court, administrative agency, 
or other body with appropriate jurisdiction, the remaining section, subsection, sentences, 
clauses, or phrases under application shall not be affected thereby. 

SECTION 3.  This ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its final adoption 
by the City Commission 

PASSED AND ORDAINED this ____ day of _____________, 2012, by the City 
Commission of the City of Wildwood, Florida. 

SEAL CITY COMMISSION 
CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 

ATTEST:______________________ ____________________________
 Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk Ed Wolf, Mayor 

First Reading:__________________ 

Second Reading:_______________ 

Approved as to form: 

Jerri A. Blair 
City Attorney
C:\Documents and Settings\User\My Documents\AAA-LISA DOCS\COW-LAP\ord\2012\O2012-__.base water.wastewater.wpd 

2



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. c. 1. - Page 1/2

RESOLUTION R2012-01 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA; 
OPPOSING PROPOSED LEGISLATION THAT MODIFIES, 
RESTRICTS OR ELIMINATES THE AUTHORITY OF 
MUNICIPALITIES TO LEVY, COLLECT AND/OR EXPEND 
THE COMMUNICATION SERVICES TAX AND THE LOCAL 
BUSINESS TAX; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City of Wildwood and other cities throughout the State of Florida 
and counties have the authority to levy and/or expend the communication services tax 
and the local business tax; and, 

WHEREAS, local governments have a better knowledge of the needs for 
services on a local level; and, 

WHEREAS, the City Commission of the City of Wildwood, Florida deems it to be 
in the best interests of the citizens and residents of the City and the entire State to 
oppose certain proposed legislation that modifies, restricts or eliminates the authority of 
municipalities to levy, collect and/or expend the communications services tax and the 
local business tax. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 
CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA: 

SECTION 1. The foregoing “WHEREAS” clauses are hereby ratified and 
confirmed as being true and correct and are hereby made a specific part of this 
Resolution. 

SECTION 2. The City of Wildwood City Commission hereby opposes the 
proposed legislation that modifies, restricts or eliminates the authority of municipalities 
to levy, collect and/or expend the communications services tax and the local business 
tax. The City Commission hereby further urges municipalities in Sumter County and 
throughout the State of Florida, as well as Florida electors, to oppose the proposed 
Constitutional amendment if it appears on the general election ballot. 

SECTION 3. The City Clerk is hereby directed to provide a certified copy of this 
Resolution to the Governor of the State of Florida, the Speaker of the Florida House of 
Representatives, the President of the Florida Senate, the members of the Sumter 
County Legislative delegation, the Florida League of Cities, all municipalities in Sumter 
County, and the Sumter County Board of County Commissioners. 

SECTION 4. All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith be, and 
the same are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 



_______________________________ 

3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. c. 1. - Page 2/2

SECTION 5. If any clause, section, other part or application of this Resolution is 
held by any court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or invalid, in part or 
application, it shall not af fect the validity of the remaining portions or applications of this 
Resolution. 

SECTION 6. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its 
passage and adoption. 

DONE AND RESOLVED, this _____ day of _____________________, 2011, in 
regular session, by the City Commission of the City of Wildwood, Florida. 

SEAL CITY COMMISSION 
CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 

ATTEST: 

______________________________ By:___________________________ 
Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk Ed Wolf, Mayor 

Approved as to form: 

Jerri A. Blair, City Attorney 

C:\Documents and Settings\User\My Documents\AAA-LISA DOCS\COW-LAP\resos\2011\R2012-01.wpd 



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. c. 2. - Page 1/2

RESOLUTION NO. ��������

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY 
OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA, EXTENDING RESOLUTION 
R2011-05, PLACING A MORATORIUM OF PERMITTING 
INTERNET CAFES OR ENTITIES PROVIDING GAME 
PROMOTIONS IN CONNECTION WITH THE SALE OF 
CONSUMERPRODUCTS OR SERVICES FOR A PERIOD OF 
SIX MONTHS; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City of Wildwood has determined that because the language 
contained in Chapter 849.094, Florida Statutes is ambiguous, to be sure no laws are broken, 
the City is willing to place a moratorium on permitting internet cafes or entities providing 
game promotions in connection with the sale of consumer products or services to operate 
within the City until the statute is passed; and, 

WHEREAS, on May 11, 2011, the City Commission of the City of Wildwood passed 
resolution number R2011-05, which placed a moratorium on permitting internet cafes, 
cardhouses, or entities providing game promotions in connection with the sale of consumer 
products or services in the City of Wildwood; and, 

WHEREAS, the statute relating to this issue has not yet been passed and the City 
Commission would like to extend resolution R2011-05 for a period of six months. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 
CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA, THAT: 

1. The moratorium which was placed on permitting internet cafes, cardhouses, 
or entities providing game promotions in connection with the sale of consumer products or 
services in the City of Wildwood by the enactment of resolution R2011-05, is extended for 
a period of six months. 

2. This moratorium shall not affect any existing business which has already been 
permitted by the City. 

3. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its final adoption by the City 
Commission of the City of Wildwood, Florida shall remain in place for a period of six months 
or until further action of the City Commission, whichever occurs first. 

DONE AND RESOLVED, this _____ day of _____________________, 2011, in 
regular session, by the City Commission of the City of Wildwood, Florida. 



______________________________ 

3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. c. 2. - Page 2/2

CITY COMMISSION 
CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 

SEAL 
By:___________________________

 Ed Wolf, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk
C:\Documents and Settings\User\My Documents\AAA-LISA DOCS\COW-LAP\resos\2011\Reso.R2011-__.extending R2011-05.gambling.moratorium.wpd 



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. f. 1. - Page 1/6



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. f. 1. - Page 2/6



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. f. 1. - Page 3/6



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. f. 1. - Page 4/6



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. f. 1. - Page 5/6



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. f. 1. - Page 6/6



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. f. 2. - Page 1/2



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. f. 2. - Page 2/2



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 1. - Page 1/2

CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

SUBJECT: Commission Workshop 

Commission direction regarding workshop.
REQUESTED ACTION: 

Work Session (Report Only) DATE OF MEETING: 1/9/12
 Regular Meeting Special Meeting 

CONTRACT: N/A Vendor/Entity:
Effective Date: _____________ Termination Date: 
Managing Division / Dept: 

BUDGET IMPACT:

 Annual FUNDING SOURCE:
 Capital EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT:
 N/A 

HISTORY/FACTS/ISSUES: 

As discussed at the December 12, 2011 City Commission Meeting, staff was directed to set up a 
workshop with the Commission to discuss potential changes to the Comprehensive Plan, Land 
Development Regulations, and Design Standards. 

The following dates and times are being proposed for the workshop: 

Tuesday, January 17, 2012 at 6 p.m.
Wednesday, January 18, 2012 at 6 p.m.

Staff is requesting Commission direction. 

Melanie Peavy 
Development Services Director 



3. 
NE

W
 B

US
IN

ES
S 

- A
CT

IO
N 

RE
QU

IR
ED

3. 
g. 

1. 
- P

ag
e 2

/2

JA
N

U
A

R
Y

 2
0

1
2

SU
ND

AY
M
O
ND

AY
TU
ES
D
AY

W
ED
NE
SD
AY

TH
UR

SD
AY

FR
ID
AY

SA
TU
RD

AY

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

5
 

6
 

7
 

8
 

9 7P
M-

Re
gu

lar
 M

ee
tin

g 
1

0
 

1
1

 
1

2
 

1
3

 
1

4
 

1
5

 
1

6
 

17
18

1
9

 
2

0
 

2
1

 

6P
M-

Pr
op

os
ed

 C
om

p 
Pl

an
 6

PM
-P

ro
po

se
d 

Co
m

p 
Pl

an
 

W
or

ks
ho

p 
Me

et
in

g 
W

or
ks

ho
p 

Me
et

in
g 

2
2

 
23 7P

M-
Re

gu
lar

 M
ee

tin
g 

2
4

 
2

5
 

2
6

 
2

7
 

2
8

 

2
9

 
3

0
 

3
1

 

NO
TE
S:



JA
N

U
A

R
Y

 2
0

1
2

3. 
NE

W
 B

US
IN

ES
S 

- A
CT

IO
N 

RE
QU

IR
ED

3. 
g. 

2. 
- P

ag
e 1

/2

SU
ND

AY
M
O
ND

AY
TU
ES
D
AY

W
ED
NE
SD
AY

TH
UR

SD
AY

FR
ID
AY

SA
TU
RD

AY

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

5
 

6
 

7
 

8
 

9 7P
M-

Re
gu

lar
 M

ee
tin

g 
1

0
 

1
1

 
1

2
 

1
3

 
1

4
 

1
5

 
1

6
 

17
18

1
9

 
2

0
 

2
1

 

6P
M-

Pr
op

os
ed

 C
om

p 
Pl

an
 6

PM
-P

ro
po

se
d 

Co
m

p 
Pl

an
 

W
or

ks
ho

p 
Me

et
in

g 
W

or
ks

ho
p 

Me
et

in
g 

2
2

 
23 7P

M-
Re

gu
lar

 M
ee

tin
g 

2
4

 
2

5
 

2
6

 
2

7
 

2
8

 

2
9

 
3

0
 

3
1

 

NO
TE
S:



3. 
NE

W
 B

US
IN

ES
S 

- A
CT

IO
N 

RE
QU

IR
ED

3. 
g. 

2. 
- P

ag
e 2

/2

F
E

B
R

U
A

R
Y

 2
0

1
2

SU
N
D
AY

M
O
N
D
AY

TU
ES
D
AY

W
ED
N
ES
D
AY

TH
U
RS
D
AY

FR
ID
AY

SA
TU
RD

AY

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

5
 

6
 

7
 

8
 

9
 

1
0

 
1

1
 

1
2

 
1

3
 

1
4

 
1

5
 

1
6

 
1

7
 

1
8

 

1
9

 
2

0
 

2
1

 
2

2
 

2
3

 
2

4
 

2
5

 

2
6

 
2

7
 

2
8

 
2

9
 

N
O
TE
S:



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g 3. - Page 1/1



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 4. - Page 1/33

CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

SUBJECT: Landstone DRI Extension 

Extension of Landstone DRI due to legislation. 
REQUESTED ACTION: 

Work Session (Report Only) DATE OF MEETING: 1/9/12
 Regular Meeting Special Meeting 

CONTRACT: N/A Vendor/Entity:
Effective Date: _____________ Termination Date: 
Managing Division / Dept: 

BUDGET IMPACT:

 Annual FUNDING SOURCE:
 Capital EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT:
 N/A 

HISTORY/FACTS/ISSUES: 

Cecilia Bonifay with Akerman Senterfitt is requesting a four year, ten month extension of the 
Landstone DRI (approved by the City Commission on January 10, 2011 and effective March 18, 2011) 
under Section 494 of Chapter 2011-142 and Section Chapter 2011-139, Laws of Florida, per her letter 
dated December 28, 2011 on behalf of their client, Landstone-Wright, LLC. 

Per Section 494 of Chapter 2011-142 and Chapter 2011-139, Laws of Florida, the developer has the 
right to request an extension for a total period of approximately four years and ten months, which 
would extend phasing and compliance dates as follows:

 Commencement date   January 22, 2021
DRI build-out and termination date November 21, 2035

Subsection 1.16 (A) of the Land Development Regulations (LDRs), Supplemental Regulations, state
that in addition to the requirements of the Code, all development shall meet all applicable 
requirements of other regulatory agencies and of other City ordinances. 

Melanie Peavy 
Development Services Director 



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 4. - Page 2/33



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 4. - Page 3/33



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 4. - Page 4/33



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 4. - Page 5/33



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 4. - Page 6/33



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 4. - Page 7/33



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 4. - Page 8/33



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 4. - Page 9/33



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 4. - Page 10/33



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 4. - Page 11/33



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 4. - Page 12/33



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 4. - Page 13/33



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 4. - Page 14/33



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 4. - Page 15/33



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 4. - Page 16/33



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 4. - Page 17/33



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 4. - Page 18/33



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 4. - Page 19/33



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 4. - Page 20/33



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 4. - Page 21/33



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 4. - Page 22/33



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 4. - Page 23/33



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 4. - Page 24/33



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 4. - Page 25/33



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 4. - Page 26/33



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 4. - Page 27/33



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 4. - Page 28/33



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 4. - Page 29/33



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 4. - Page 30/33



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 4. - Page 31/33



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 4. - Page 32/33



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 4. - Page 33/33



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 5. - Page 1/5

CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

SUBJECT: Wildwood Springs DRI Extension 

Extension of Wildwood Springs DRI due to legislation.
REQUESTED ACTION: 

Work Session (Report Only) DATE OF MEETING: 1/9/12
 Regular Meeting Special Meeting 

CONTRACT: N/A Vendor/Entity:
Effective Date: _____________ Termination Date: 
Managing Division / Dept: 

BUDGET IMPACT:

 Annual FUNDING SOURCE:
 Capital EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT:
 N/A 

HISTORY/FACTS/ISSUES: 

Dean Barberee with Reader & Partners LLC is requesting a four year ten month extension of the 
Wildwood Springs DRI (approved by the City Commission on April 11, 2011 effective June 12, 2011) 
under Section 380.06(19)(c) 2 and Section 252.363, Florida Statutes (2011), per his letter dated 
December 28, 2011 on behalf of their client, Wildwood Springs, LLC. 

Per Section 380.06(19)(c) 2 and Section 252.363, the developer has the right to request an extension 
for a total period of four years ten months, which would extend phasing and compliance dates as 
follows:

Phase 1 from 2016 to 2021 
Phase 2 from 2021 to 2026 
Phase 3 from 2026 to 2031 
Compliance from 12/31/2031 to 10/30/2036 

Subsection 1.16 (A) of the Land Development Regulations (LDRs), Supplemental Regulations, state
that in addition to the requirements of the Code, all development shall meet all applicable 
requirements of other regulatory agencies and of other City ordinances. 

Melanie Peavy 
Development Services Director 



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 5. - Page 2/5



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 5. - Page 3/5



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 5. - Page 4/5



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 5. - Page 5/5



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 6. - Page 1/48

CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

SUBJECT: Wildwood Springs PD Extension 

Extension of Wildwood Springs PD due to legislation.
REQUESTED ACTION: 

Work Session (Report Only) DATE OF MEETING: 1/9/12
 Regular Meeting Special Meeting 

CONTRACT: N/A Vendor/Entity:
Effective Date: _____________ Termination Date: 
Managing Division / Dept: 

BUDGET IMPACT:

 Annual FUNDING SOURCE:
 Capital EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT:
 N/A 

HISTORY/FACTS/ISSUES: 

Dean Barberee with Reader & Partners LLC is requesting a four year ten month extension of the 
Wildwood Springs PD (Approved by the City Commission on December 12, 2011 via Ordinance 
O 2011-18) under Section 380.06(19)(c) 2 and Section 252.363, Florida Statutes (2011), per his letter 
dated December 28, 2011 on behalf of their client, Wildwood Springs, LLC. 

Per Section 380.06(19)(c) 2 and Section 252.363, the developer has the right to request an extension 
for a total period of four years ten months effective December 12, 2017 through October 11, 2022. 

Subsection 1.16 (A) of the Land Development Regulations (LDRs), Supplemental Regulations, state
that in addition to the requirements of the Code, all development shall meet all applicable 
requirements of other regulatory agencies and of other City ordinances. 

Melanie Peavy 
Development Services Director 



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 6. - Page 2/48



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 6. - Page 3/48



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 6. - Page 4/48



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 6. - Page 5/48



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 6. - Page 6/48



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 6. - Page 7/48



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 6. - Page 8/48



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 6. - Page 9/48



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 6. - Page 10/48



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 6. - Page 11/48



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 6. - Page 12/48



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 6. - Page 13/48



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 6. - Page 14/48



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 6. - Page 15/48



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 6. - Page 16/48



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 6. - Page 17/48



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 6. - Page 18/48



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 6. - Page 19/48



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 6. - Page 20/48



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 6. - Page 21/48



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 6. - Page 22/48



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 6. - Page 23/48



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 6. - Page 24/48



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 6. - Page 25/48



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 6. - Page 26/48



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 6. - Page 27/48



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 6. - Page 28/48



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 6. - Page 29/48



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 6. - Page 30/48



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 6. - Page 31/48



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 6. - Page 32/48



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 6. - Page 33/48



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 6. - Page 34/48



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 6. - Page 35/48



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 6. - Page 36/48



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 6. - Page 37/48



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 6. - Page 38/48



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 6. - Page 39/48



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 6. - Page 40/48



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 6. - Page 41/48



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 6. - Page 42/48



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 6. - Page 43/48



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 6. - Page 44/48



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 6. - Page 45/48



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 6. - Page 46/48



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 6. - Page 47/48



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 6. - Page 48/48



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 7. - Page 1/3

CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

SUBJECT: Lenard Powell – Request to purchase City Property 

Commission direction regarding request.
REQUESTED ACTION: 

Work Session (Report Only) DATE OF MEETING: 1/9/12
 Regular Meeting Special Meeting 

CONTRACT: N/A Vendor/Entity:
Effective Date: _____________ Termination Date: 
Managing Division / Dept: 

BUDGET IMPACT:

 Annual FUNDING SOURCE:
 Capital EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT:
 N/A 

HISTORY/FACTS/ISSUES: 

Lenard Powell is requesting approval to purchase a City-owned property, a portion of parcel ID 
G08=018 which is contiguous to property he owns, as noted on the attached map.  It is generally 
located to the north of the intersection of Powell Road and County Road 44A. 

Staff is requesting Commission direction on how to proceed with this request. 

Melanie Peavy 
Development Services Director 



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 7. - Page 2/3



3. NEW BUSINESS - ACTION REQUIRED
3. g. 7. - Page 3/3


